
STORM WATER COMMITTEE MINUTES 
FEBRUARY 2, 2016 

 
The Storm Water Committee meeting was held on February 2, 2016 at North Royalton City Hall, 14600 State 
Road. The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
PRESENT: Committee Members: Chair Dan Langshaw, Vice Chair Steve Muller, Gary Petrusky; Council: 
Larry Antoskiewicz, John Nickell, Paul Marnecheck, Dan Kasaris; Administration: Mayor Robert Stefanik, 
City Engineer Mark Schmitzer, Service Director Nick Cinquepalmi; Other: Lou Krzepina. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Moved by Mr. Muller, seconded by Mr. Langshaw to approve the January 5, 2016 minutes. Yeas: 3. Nays: 
0. Motion carried.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
1. Storm Water/Infrastructure Maintenance Monthly Report 

A copy of this report is attached to these minutes.  
 

2. 2015 Projects 
Mr. Schmitzer reported on the Cedar Estates Regional Basin project. They met last week with the 
consultants regarding the project status. He said the applications to both the EPA and Army Corps of 
Engineers were submitted on June 22, 2015 and January 14, 2016. The Army Corps has reviewed our 
initial application, we addressed their comments and resubmitted on January 14, 2016. The EPA has 15 
days from when we submitted our application to either request additional information or acknowledge that 
the application we have submitted is complete and at that time the reviewer in the local office will begin 
the review. He said that the EPA requires a public notice period just as we did with the Army Corps. Once 
our consultant gets word from the local office that they are starting their review, they will publish the 30 
day public notice in the Plain Dealer. From that point the maximum time frame to have the permit issued 
by the EPA is 180 days. Mr. Schmitzer said that they have spoken with the consultants and they said that 
because they are already aware of the project it should move more quickly. He said that we are hopeful 
that the time frame will be June/July. He said that the Army Corps does not have a deadline period but 
they usually follow suit with the EPA. By then we should be ready to go with the construction package, 
bid package and go out to bid with construction happening this year. Mr. Schmitzer said that they will be 
vigilant during the permit process to help expedite the process. Mr. Antoskiewicz asked for a status update 
on Phase 1 which was the storm sewer portion of the project. Mr. Schmitzer said that we are basically 
done with the punch list items. We know that there are minor items that need to be addressed such as 
landscaping, lawns, minor cracks in driveways, etc. We have a 3 year guarantee and the contractor has 
already said that they will revisit all of these items in the spring. We will still have another 2 years on the 
guarantee beyond that for anything that may happen. Mr. Nickell said that he has received numerous 
complaints about the grass being too sparse as well as the type of grass seed used. Mr. Schmitzer said that 
he has spoken with the contractor about this particular issue and they said that they are willing to revisit 
the seed mix if necessary when they reseed. Mr. Nickell said that he has spoken with the Mayor regarding 
the Applewood Creek project. He said we had talked about a linear restore. He said we need to address 
some of these banks and clean up some of the bad stuff that is there, especially before the turn on the 
north/south part where we did an emergency dig because it was below grade. Mr. Schmitzer said that we 
have spoken with the consultant and they are willing to come out and look at things and tell us what they 
think they need in order to get the best results for our money. He said that he has already reached out to 
Soil and Water, West Creek and a few other agencies to see if there are any programs that may be coming 
up with grant money to assist in getting something done. He said that he attended a watershed advisory 
committee meeting last night for one of the three watersheds that we are a part of for the sewer district and 
this is one of the areas that we can look at to possibly apply to the sewer district as a project that may 
qualify under their program. He said that we are trying every avenue and are not going to ignore this 
project. It just may take a little longer than we wanted, but we will address this area. Mr. Nickell asked if 
we are still getting the money from the sewer district that was agreed upon before the law suit. Mayor 



Storm Water Committee February 2, 2016 Page 2 
 

Stefanik said yes, this agreement is still in effect. Mr. Schmitzer said that we have already submitted the 
plans and the studies over to the sewer district to review as a part of the agreement. Mr. Schmitzer reported 
on the York/Tilby creek project. He said that he met with the 3 residents and received some feedback that 
will be included with the plans. He said that we are still waiting for the check from the Soil and Water 
Conservation District who is getting the check from the EPA. He said that the EPA has been slow handing 
out money on other grants as well. We have been calling them every other day to find out when this will 
happen. As soon as it does, he said that we are ready to go with rights of entry from the homeowners, the 
project is ready to go out to bid and after that we should be able to get construction started right away. Mr. 
Antoskiewicz asked for a status update on the Akins Road culvert. Mr. Schmitzer said that they were 
setting the box culvert in today. He said that the time frame for completion should be somewhere around 
the end of March. It was agreed to remove 2015 projects from the agenda and conduct future 
discussions under 2016 projects. 
 

3. Turnpike Mitigation 
Mr. Schmitzer said he is waiting to hear from ODOT to see if this project is still on track for 2017. He said 
it has been assigned an ODOT project identification number and is being worked on by the consultant. He 
will update the committee as soon as more information is received. He said that we need to have an 
internal discussion about the other grant we have for York Road regarding letting ODOT do the work or 
doing it in-house. Mr. Kasaris asked when we will be applying for the next round of grant money from the 
Turnpike. Mr. Schmitzer said that the application process is opening up sometime this month and will be 
for 2018. Mr. Kasaris asked what projects we would be submitting and would they include the ones that 
we didn’t receive funding for in the last round. Mr. Schmitzer said that there has not been any discussion 
on this yet but he would make the assumption that we would apply for the two projects we did not receive 
funding for in the last round. Discussion regarding additional sound walls occurred.  
 

4. NEORSD Storm Water Program 
Mayor Stefanik said that our Law Department is working with the district’s Law Department and he hopes 
to have a report by the next meeting. Mayor Stefanik said that the settlement states that cities will get back 
25% of what the sewer district collects for use on storm water projects, including funding for the storm 
water crews. Mr. Muller asked if he is understanding it correctly and that members of Council would like 
us to include the rest of the community in on this program. Mayor Stefanik said that this will most likely 
be the recommendations that both law departments will be working on and will be amending the old 
agreement. Mr. Muller said that he is still having trouble understanding why we want to include more of 
the city into this where we are sending 75% of the money to another entity outside the city. Mayor 
Stefanik said this money would be used for the major streams throughout the entire northeast Ohio 
watersheds. He said we are the headwaters of three watersheds here in North Royalton. So for example in 
Ward 5, every time it rains, the Rocky River overflows its banks. This would be something that the sewer 
district would try to alleviate. Mr. Muller said that the problem is that there is no guarantee that they will 
ever work on these projects with this money. Mayor Stefanik said it’s just like when you send your money 
to Columbus, you are not guaranteed that you will get it back from Columbus. Mr. Muller asked how 
many households are we intending to add that are not included in District “C”. Mayor Stefanik said it will 
include the entire city. Mayor Stefanik said that if we left it only to District “C”, we wouldn’t see a big 
return on the money because that district does not have major tributaries such as the Baldwin Creek or 
Rocky River. He said the sewer district’s storm water utility will be focused on rivers and major 
tributaries; not the small ditches in front of homes. Mr. Muller said that he understands the program, but is 
trying to understand why we would want to do something where we are essentially levying a fee or tax on 
all the households when it does not have to be done. Mayor Stefanik asked when he is standing in 
someone’s basement in Ward 5 that has flooded because the Rocky River overflowed, would Mr. Muller 
rather he did nothing and just hope it never rains. Mr. Marnecheck said that this is a way to ensure that 
these projects are eligible for the district’s program. If it’s not included in the district then there is no 
chance that they would do any of this work. Mr. Kasaris said if we don’t include other areas outside of 
District “C” then whenever it rains, we are on our own. Mayor Stefanik said that is correct. On May 12, 
2014 the district sent out a lot of equipment to help us and this is the type of partnership we want to forge 



Storm Water Committee February 2, 2016 Page 3 
 

and move forward with. He said that if we only include District “C”, then the 25% return to the city could 
only be used in District “C”. He said that he hopes to have an agreement from the sewer district soon and 
everyone can take a look at it. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
1. 2016 Projects 

Discussed under 2015 projects. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
Moved by Mr. Langshaw, seconded by Mr. Petrusky to adjourn the February 2, 2016 meeting. Yeas: 3. 
Nays: 0. Motion carried. Meeting adjourned at 6:25 p.m.  



          
Storm Department Monthly Report – January 2016 
  
Jan 4th Service Dept-  Salted streets 
 
Jan 5th Service Dept-  cleaning ceiling in service garage 
    Inspecting retention basins 
 
Jan 6st 7223 Wallings Rd- flooded and dye tested storm line 
  
 8398 N Akins-  Cleaned in front of headwall excavated and hauled away silt. 
 
Jan7th 4689 Wiltshire-  flooded and televised storm main pipe filled with roots. 
 
 4800 Wiltshire-  Flooded and televised storm main found no leaks dirt settling. 
 
Jan 8th 6681 Sherwood Trl- Excavated cleaned concrete trough hauled away silt and debris 
    Cleaned in front of headwall. 
 
Jan 11th Service Garage-  Televised 48’’ storm main in empty lot west side of service yard. 
 
    Painted ceiling in service garage 
 
Jan 12th Service Garage-  Plowing and salting streets 
 
Jan 13th Service Garage-  Plowing and salting streets  
 
Jan 14th 10536 Cambridge Ct- Hand dug added a 2’’ and a 4’’ riser to manhole,  jetted storm 
    Main. 
 
Jan 15th 10562 Cambridge Ct- Televised storm main . 
  
 6601 Quennsway- Flooded and televised storm main. 
 
Jan 18th 7223 Wallings-    Excavated 4’’ located a 6’’ clay pipe excavated alongside pipe  
     Located a bad connection repaired connection with a fernco. 
 
Jan 19th 7233 Wallings -  Backfilled trench in lifts and tamped defined the swale across 
    The front of the property. 
 
  11043 Chealsea Ct- Fabricated a section of grate and Installed grate to the front of  
     The exsisting trash grate. 
 
 
Jan 20th  4689 Wiltshire Rd- excavated 5’ to an 8’’ storm main cut a 4’ section of clay pipe 
     Removed a root ball made repair with a 4’ section of pvc pipe 
     And 2 ferncos and backfilled 
           
 
      



    
 
Jan 21st  4689 Wiltshire Rd- Excavating 5’ to a 8’’ storm main located broken pipe cut and  
     Removed a 5’ section of clay pipe replaced with a 5’ section of 
     8’’ pvc pipe made connection with 2 ferncos and backfilled. 
   
  4665 Wiltshire Rd- Excavated 4’ around man hole exposed 12’’connection 
     Dug back uncovered 13’ of 12’’pipe located cracked pipe. 
 
Jan 22nd  4665 Wiltshire Rd- Replaced 13’ section of pipe connected with a fernco mortared 
     Pipe connection into manhole bedded stone around pipe than 
     Backfilled . 
 
Jan 25th  11131 Bridgewater- Flooded and televised storm main front and side of house 
     ( corner house) 
 
Jan 26th  5020-5040 Button Bush-Flooded and televised storm main. 
 
  10002-10018 Sweetleaf-flooded and televised storm main. 
 
Jan 27th   5520 Creek Run - Clean debris from in front of headwall 
 
  11752- 11426 State- Jetted storm main 
 
Jan 28th  6770 Queensway- Cleaned concrete trough with mini in retention basin. 
 
Jan 29th  Service Dept-  Salted streets 
 
   
      
                    
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
      


	020216 Storm Water Minutes
	020216 Storm Water Minutes - EXHIBIT

